ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 23, 2004
3:25 p.m
MEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Harry Crawford
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 389

"An Act relating to certain nonetary advances in which the
deposit or other negotiation of certain instrunments to pay the
advances is delayed until a later date; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 389(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 418
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Real Estate
Comm ssion; and providing for an effective date.™

- MOVED CSHB 418(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 509
"An Act relating to establishing the Al aska Gam ng Conmm ssion."

- MOVED CSHB 509 (L&C) OUT OF COWMM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 389

SHORT TITLE: DEFERRED DEPCSI T ADVANCES ( PAYDAY LOANS)
SPONSOR(S): LABOR & COMVERCE

01/ 20/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 04 (H) L&C, FIN
01/ 23/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2004



01/ 23/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed 1/28/04>
01/ 28/ 04 (H L&C AT 3: 30 PM SENATE FI NANCE 532
01/ 28/ 04 (H Heard & Held

01/ 28/ 04 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

01/ 30/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 30/ 04 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed to 2/4/04>
02/ 04/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3: 15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 04/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 18/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3: 15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 18/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 23/ 04 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 418

SHORT TITLE: EXTEND REAL ESTATE COWM SSI ON
SPONSOR(S): LABOR & COMVERCE

02/ 02/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (H) L&C

02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 16/ 04 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 23/ 04 (H L&C AT 3: 15 PM CAPI TOL 17

Bl LL: HB 509
SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA GAM NG COWM SSI ON
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KOTT

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 23/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

CLYDE (ED) SN FFEN, JR., Assistant Attorney General

Fair Busi ness Practices Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Addressed changes in the proposed commttee
substitute for HB 389 and expressed concern relating to the
commer ce cl ause.

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 389.

GORI UNE DUDUKG AN, Staff Attorney

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 23, 2004



Al aska Legal Services Corporation
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 389.

ANGELA LI STON, Director

O fice of Justice and Peace

Ar chdi ocese of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 389; spoke on
behal f of the Alaska Catholic Conference with recommendations to
| ower the rate of interest or the fees.

MARI E DARLI N, Coor di nat or

AARP Capital Gty Task Force

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 389 as
i ntroduced and recommended changes.

DEBRA FI NK, Oaner

Cash Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 389.

KATHRYN CLARK, President

Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of the portion of
HB 418 that extends the real estate comm ssion to June 30, 2008,
but noted concern about changes to the surety fund proposed in
the audit.

DAVE FEEKEN, Legislative Chair

Al aska Association of Realtors

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of CSHB 418, Version D.

SUE STANCLI FF

House Majority Ofice

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented CSHB 509, Version |, on behalf of
Representative Kott, sponsor.

DARW N Bl VER

Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association (CHARR) for
Al aska and for Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 23, 2004



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 5009.

ROBERT LOESCHER, Chair

Legislative Commttee

Al aska Native Brotherhood, Canmp 2;

President, Juneau Tlingit-Haida Community Counci

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 509, with sone
suggestions for changes.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 5009.

ED MOEGLEI N

Al aska Nonprofit Charitable O ganization

Sol dot na, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 509 and sought
representation on the proposed comm ssion for his organi zation.

GREG PETERSON

Allied Charities

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified agai nst HB 509 and questioned the
reason for the proposed gam ng conmm ssi on.

LARRY MEYERS, Deputy Director

Tax Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered background on investigations of the
gam ng industry in Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-16, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:25 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Gatto, Dahlstrom Lynn, Rokeberg, and QGuttenberg were
present at the call to order.

HB 389- DEFERRED DEPOSI T ADVANCES ( PAYDAY LOANS)

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2004



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 389, "An Act relating to certain nonetary
advances in which the deposit or other negotiation of certain
instrunments to pay the advances is delayed until a |ater date;
and providing for an effective date.” [HB 389 was sponsored by
t he House Labor and Comerce Standing Committee.]

CHAI R ANDERSON explained that he hadn't received a proposed
commttee substitute (CS) from Legislative Legal and Research
Services because of last-mnute changes from governnental
entities including the Departnent of Law. Therefore, he asked
that the draft proposed CS from the Ofice of the Attorney
General be adopted instead.

Nunmber 0098

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt the undated, unnunbered
draft version in packets |abeled "House Bill No. 389" as a
conceptual CS.

CHAIR ANDERSON, hearing no objection, announced that the
proposed CS was before the conmttee.

Number 0170

CHAI R ANDERSON rem nded nenbers that the bill has to do wth
deposits and nonetary advances; that there was previous
di scussion of caps and rollovers; and that changes had been
wor ked out by those who pressed for this legislation from the
Division of Banking and Securities and the Ofice of the
Attorney General, who had cone to sone consensus. The $1, 000
cap originally in the bill on the anmount for which a person
could negotiate an advance was believed to be too high by AARP
and others; Chair Anderson said he agreed and it was |lowered to
$500 in the proposed CS. There also had been a fear about
rollovers resulting to when a custonmer could not repay the |oan
in a tinely manner. Thus this proposed CS has two rollovers

rat her than the original four in the bill

CHAI R ANDERSON expl ained that the proposed CS al so requires the
| ender to post a bond to get a license; there was no bond in the
original bill. The lender will be subject to closer scrutiny by
the Division of Banking and Securities, which he suggested M.
Sniffen could address. The |ender also nust offer the consuner
a paynment-plan option before initiating legal action to collect
against a consuner in default; this paynent plan includes
sending a certified letter offering to assist the consuner. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 23, 2004



suggested this stays within the spirit of consunmer protection,
enhances comunication, and affords the consuner additional
latitude if there's a potential inability to repay.

CHAI R ANDERSON sai d proposed changes include a $700 cap, down

from $1,000 in the original bill, on total damages the | ender
can recover in addition to the face value of the check for
collection efforts. The |ender can only charge $15 per $100
| oan and no other fees, charges, or interest of any Kkind. The
original bill allowed for additional interest, which AARP and
the Alaska Public Interest Research Goup (AKPIRG had testified
was exorbitant. Furthernore, there are now specific disclosure
requi renents concerning fees, charges, penalties, and so forth
that weren't in the original bill. He remarked that he's

somewhat satisfied at this stage.
Nunber 0414

CLYDE (ED) SNIFFEN, JR, Assistant Attorney General, Fair
Busi ness Practices Secti on, Civil Di vi si on (Anchor age) ,
Department of Law, testified in support of HB 389. He said
Chair Anderson had accurately sumrarized the mmjor changes in
the proposed CS; he opined that these are positive changes to
protect consunmers against sone practices that have resulted in
the nost harm In particular, he nmentioned the paynent-plan
provision that has been inplenented and that requires payday
|l enders to give consumers extra options to repay these debts
before collection actions are initiated. M. Sniffen said he
hadn't seen this provision in other states' |egislation, thinks
it's a good direction, and is glad the payday |enders were
agreeabl e to those provisions.

MR. SNl FFEN poi nted out that the Departnent of Law had incl uded
| anguage to address catalog sales and coupon sales practices.
[Under the proposed CS] |enders cannot use those forns of
paynent to satisfy a transaction, either by offering a consuner
coupons or nerchandise out of a catalog or by using other ways
to get around the limtations on fees in this legislation; he
said this is positive as well.

MR SNIFFEN said the regulatory provisions of this bill are
fairly extensive and give the Division of Banking and Securities
fairly onerous powers to investigate and audit payday |lenders to
ensure conpli ance. He indicated the Departnent of Law worked
with the division and the bank exam ners on the |language in this
draft to ensure they have tools to gather information for review
and take action that they deem necessary to correct violations.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 23, 2004



MR. SNI FFEN noted that the regulatory scheme of this legislation
has much stronger Ilanguage in the proposed CS than in the

original bill. Mentioning collaboration on sone of the |anguage
with Cash Alaska, one of the payday |enders, he expressed
satisfaction with the result. He indicated there are nunerous

ot her requirenents, but said he wanted to focus on one area that
m ght require a conceptual anmendnent.

Nunber 0614

VR. SNI FFEN  began discussion of what becane  Concept ual
Amendnent 1. He referred to the requirenent that a payday
| ender have a physical location in the state. He reported that
he'd |ooked at this issue with Cynthia Drinkwater [assistant
attorney general with the departnent] and believes there m ght
be a question regarding whether an entity could be required to
have a physical location in Alaska and not run afoul of
prohi bitions on interstate conmerce activities.

MR. SNl FFEN explained that [the Departnent of Lawj, wth the
help of the Division of Banking and Securities exam ners, had
arrived at sone |anguage used in Washington that could address
this problem it would require that anyone who conducts busi ness
with an Alaska resident from an out-of-state |ocation nust
conply with all the ternms of the Act, including |icensing
requi renents, bonding requirenents, the cap on the anount, the
roll over cap, and disclosure requirenents. Lenders with out-of-
state locations would also be subject to investigation by
Al aska's Division of Banking and Securities. But this would
allow themto conduct business froman out-of-state |ocation.

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to Representative Rokeberg, specified

that the proposed change is in Sec. 06.50.010, "Li cense
requi red", page 1. The first sentence starts, "A person may not
engage in the business of naking deferred deposit advances"”. It
would be changed to say, "A person, including persons who

conduct business wth Alaska residents from out-of-state
| ocations,” and then continue with the rest of the sentence as
written. Al so, on page 2, deleted would be subsection (a)(3),
"have a physical business location in the state that is
accessi bl e and convenient to the public.”

Number 0850

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 23, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Sniffen if, i nstead of
del eti ng subsection [(a)(3)], his "out-of-state" clause could be
added to the end as an "or".

MR. SNIFFEN agreed that's one way to approach it, but said he
wasn't sure it would be nore effective than deleting that
requi renent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested it makes a difference
subst antively because by |eaving the subsection (a)(3) |anguage,
t he physical business |ocation would have to be accessible and
convenient to the public. He asked whether it would work to add
the "or"™ wthin subsection (a)(3) along with M. Sniffen's
| anguage about the "out-of-state".

MR. SNI FFEN sai d he believed that woul d work.
CHAI R ANDERSON noted that this would be in addition to the
suggested change in Sec. 06.50.010. He referred to page 2, line

4, and asked that M. Sniffen read what he would add [in
subsection (a)(3)].

Number 0915

MR. SNI FFEN speci fi ed:

W would have at the end of that sentence, "have a
physi cal business l|ocation in the state that s
accessible and convenient to the public, or, if

conducting business with Al aska residents from out-of -
state locations, conply with the conditions of this
chapter.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Sniffen whether those were the only
subst antive changes he believed should be added to this draft.

MR. SNI FFEN affirmed that.

Number 0969

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt the foregoing as
Conceptual Anmendnment 1. He specified that it would include the

| anguage on page 1, the first sentence of Sec. 06.50.010 [adding
", including persons who conduct business with Al aska residents

from out-of-state |ocations,"]. Al so, on page 2, fourth |ine,
subsection (a)(3), after "public", +the semcolon wuld be
del eted, and added would be [", or, if conducting business wth

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 23, 2004



Al aska residents from out-of-state |locations, conply wth
conditions of this chapter”].

Number 1035

CHAI R ANDERSON, hearing no objection, announced that Conceptua
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

MR SNIFFEN said he'd been working wth Terry Bannister,
| egi slative drafter, on some technical procedural |anguage in
the bill. He said none of the changes were substantive, but the
[final] CS mght not |ook exactly like the draft version before
the conmittee now.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG read from the proposed CS, page 2, which
stated the following in part under Sec. 06.50.030, Application
duration, and renewal of |icense:

(1), the legal nane, residence, and business address
of the applicant and, if the applicant is not a
natural person, of each nenber, partner, director,
senior officer, or owner of 10 percent of nore of the
equity of the applicant;

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG r enar ked:

| don't think we need an anmendnent here, but I'd just
like to put on the record that the way this bill is
drafted, you could have either an individual as a
natural person or a person, which under our drafting

manual neans any business or any other entity. So,
therefore, you could have a license by an individual
and/ or a business entity. Is that correct?

MR. SN FFEN replied, "That is correct and that was our intent.
| think this language actually canme from either the small | oan
Act or another provision, the banking code, and is consistent
wi th how other financial institutions regulate it."

Nunber 1136

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it's an inportant distinction
because nobst occupational licensing and other |icenses in the
state under Title 8 apply to an individual and not a business,
with the exception of architectural and engineering firns, for
exanpl e. He said he wanted on the record that an individual or
busi ness coul d be an applicant.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 23, 2004



CHAI R ANDERSON pointed out that there wasn't a fiscal note from
the Division of Banking and Securities, and said his staff had
prepared a commttee zero fiscal note in its place in order to
nove the bill forward. He asked M. Sniffen if he could
specul ate what other fiscal notes mght be forthcomng fromthe
D vi sion of Banking and Securities, and when.

MR. SNIFFEN responded that the Departnent of Law doesn't
anticipate a fiscal inpact. He pointed out that the Division of
Banking and Securities [within the Departnent of Comunity &
Econom c Devel opnent] would have to address whether it has cone
up with a prospective fiscal note relating to the hiring of
addi ti onal exam ners.

Nunber 1196

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG referred to page 1, Qualifications for
| i cense, paragraph (2), which read in part, "denonstrate the
fi nanci al responsibility, fi nanci al condi tion, busi ness
experience, character, and general fitness that reasonably
warrant”. He asked M. Sniffen how the foregoing are defined.

MR. SNI FFEN replied that he didn't know of a definition for any
one of those, but they're terns he believes the D vision of
Banki ng and Securities understands and knows how to interpret
when conducting these audits. He said he believes that | anguage
is consistent with other |anguage in the banking code that the
di vi sion uses to audi t ot her financi al i nstitutions;
furthernore, he believes the ternms are fairly broad, which is
intentional to sone extent, to give the division sone |atitude
to determine whether a business not only is able financially,
but also has the experience to conply with the ternms of this
chapter.

Number 1257

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG directed attention to [page 7,
Sec. 06.50.130, Requirenments, ternms and procedures], subsection
(e), which reads, "A licensee with multiple licensed offices
shall not extend advances to the sanme recipient in excess of an
aggregated principal balance of $500." He asked how that wll
be determ ned and how a record will be kept of that.

MR. SNIFFEN said that's a good question, one [the departnent]

had di scussed with the Cash Al aska representatives on how they
woul d identify individuals who are "hopping” from one business

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 23, 2004



to another to take out multiple $500 loans. Admitting it would
be difficult to nonitor to sonme extent, he nentioned the
Division of Banking and Securities' audits and exam nations as
one route to track a person using nultiple |enders. He
suggested M. WIson, owner of Cash Al aska, could speak to how
they plan to ensure that nultiple locations can track |enders
from one |ocation to another. He did not know if they had the
technical ability to do this tracking through their conputer
system so that all their l|ocations know that a custoner has
recei ved an advance, and the anount of the advance.

MR. SN FFEN pointed out that they've been unable to devise a
system to track custoners that "hop" from one payday |ender to

anot her payday |ender. He commented, "If consuners are going to
want to do that, | think there's only so nuch you can do to stop
that."

[Bud WIson, owner of Cash Al aska, offered to answer questions.]
Nunber 1396
STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director, Al aska Public Interest

Research Group (AKPIRG, Anchorage, testified in opposition to
HB 389, saying though he appreciated the work by the Departnent

of Law and others on this bill, it doesn't deal with what he
sees as the central issue. This bill wll allow payday |enders
to lend noney at interest rates in excess of 400 percent, which
AKPIRG believes is wunfair to consuners. It allows payday

| enders to charge 417 percent APR [annual percentage rate] for a
t wo- week | oan of $500. This often |eads consuners to a cycle of
debt from which they cannot recover.

MR. CLEARY said the State of Al aska adequately protects
consunmers who borrow $600, and he feels it should do the sane
for consunmers who borrow $500 or |ess. Payday |oans currently
exist in Alaska in a |legal vacuum he said. Although Alaska is
one of 15 states that still have usury laws, snall-loan rate
caps, and no safe harbor for payday |enders, no one is enforcing
laws to protect the consumers. I ncreasingly, payday |oans are
chosen by people as a last resort, and while payday |enders can
currently sue borrowers for treble damages and court costs, no
one is enforcing Alaska's laws to protect these same consuners.

MR. CLEARY suggested it nmakes no sense that the legislature
t hought consunmers borrowi ng $600 should be protected by a 36
percent APR cap but those borrowing $500 should get no
protection and pay over 400 percent APR He said HB 389

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 23, 2004



purports to limt the anpbunt a payday |ender can charge to $15
per $100, which sounds like a firm regulation, wuntil one
realizes this is what the industry is currently charging and

therefore, it's nolimt at all.

MR. CLEARY pointed out that other states have been inundated
when they decided to turn their backs on consuners. He cited a
bill enabling payday |oans, enacted in Oklahoma; since it took
effect in Septenber 2003, alnost 300 storefront |enders have
sprung up in Cklahoma, all but 17 with out-of-state owners. He
noted that Internet loans are proliferating, and feels an
upswing in this industry signals an unhealthy econony.
Simlarly, he said, the boomin payday |loans is equivalent to a
boom in hospital usage, which only shows that nore people are
ill - financially, in this case.

Number 1570

MR. CLEARY suggested sonme changes that AkPIRG would support.
One is prohibiting loans based on personal checks held for
future deposits. The lenders could continue to make snall
| oans, but couldn't hold the borrower's check as security.
Nonpaynment of a payday |oan should be collected just as other
small | oans are, where the |ender sues for the anmount owed. In
addi ti on, payday |enders should be subject to the small |oan Act
in order to adequately protect consuners.

MR. CLEARY said consuners need to be aware, and groups |ike
AKPI RG are educating people every day on how to nore wsely
budget their finances. He noted that AkPIRG recently cooperated
with the Departnment of Law and other groups during the nationa
consuner protection week to pronote financial literacy. He felt
that, as a society, people have adopted usury statutes because
of the belief that wusury is wong, and sinply because these
payday |oans are snaller doesn't nean outrageous interest rates
are not usurious. Carifying that AkPIRG opposes HB 389 in its
current form he asked the conmttee to anend it to adequately
protect consumers in Al aska.

Nunber 1602

CHAIR ANDERSON said he didn't see the possibility of the
proliferation of payday lenders in Alaska comng about, and
hadn't seen statistics that payday |enders target the poor,
seniors, or the mlitary. He said the last thing the commttee
wanted to do was to harm consunmers or |limt consunmer protection

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 23, 2004



He asked M. Cleary where he had gotten the information that
payday | enders harm seniors and the indigent.

Nunber 1700

MR. CLEARY responded that he'd prefer that the representative
from AARP answer the portion of the question concerning the
el derly. He then said:

We have seen, in front of the mlitary bases here in
Anchorage, | believe, four payday |oan sites just
outside the base. ... In a survey we conducted at
AKPIRG they tend to be located in |owincone
nei ghbor hoods, and have flashy signs and ads that are
designed to address that segnment of the population. |
shouldn't say those are the people who are choosing
t hese | oans, people that actually are living paycheck
to paycheck, because as ... any payday |ender could
tell you, they only lend to people who are nmaking a
steady paycheck, have utility bills and ways they can
prove some i ncone.

The point that I'm trying to nmake is that this bill
woul d allow people to take out |oans that force them
to pay 400 percent and nore, annual percentage rate
interest. W believe that, on its face, is unfair.

CHAI R ANDERSON replied that 417 percent represents the worst-
case scenario, rather than if a consunmer pays back the |oan
within the promsed period of tine. He comented that he'd
heard of several exanples when a payday |loan had forestalled
repossession of a car or the cutoff of utilities. He asked M.
Cleary if he could admit that there is a positive as well as
negative side to this |egislation.

Nunmber 1766
MR. CLEARY replied that he hoped education would help people

have enough savings so they wouldn't have to engage in the
practice of payday |oans. He acknow edged that at certain tines

people may have to engage in this practice, but still didn't
think they deserved to pay triple-digit interest rates. He
further stated:

Just for the record, under this bill, if sonebody took

out a $500 loan, paid it off in 14 days, which is the

m nimum period under this bill, their annual

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 23, 2004



percentage rate would be 417 percent. And that's
sonething that the truth-in-lending Act, a federal
Act, requires everybody to disclose, and that's what
woul d be disclosed at Cash Al aska or any other payday
| ender .

Nunber 1811

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what AkKkPIRGs primary mssion is,
according to its charter.

MR. CLEARY responded that the group has existed since 1974 in
Al aska. Its mssion is to help protect consuners; it deals wth
issues like HB 389 and utility rates. The organization is often
contacted by consuners with conplaints; they work together wth
the Departnent of Law, referring consuners to state agencies
where they can get help with any type of consuner conpl aints.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "If a person has a bill that they
need to pay, that's going to charge them even nore for being
| ate than the anount they could pay by borrowing this noney. |Is
t hat sonet hing you woul d oppose?”

MR. CLEARY responded that he wouldn't oppose that, but pointed
out that consunmers who take out payday |oans are often the nost
vul nerabl e consuners that AKPIRG sees. Laws set |l oan rates for
housing and small |oans, often at a rather |ow percentage
conpared with the 400-plus percent this bill would allow. He
agreed there m ght be energencies when people need payday | oans,
but said they shouldn't be paying triple-digit percentage rates
on t hem

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO r esponded:

If a triple-digit percentage is bad, what about a

quadrupl e-digit percentage? If, indeed, that's the
choice an individual has that says, "I'm going to pay
a whole lot nore unless | get this thing taken care of
because | have a penalty and | may have to get
sonet hing repossessed and then try to get it back
again® - and this 417 percent my be the annual

percentage rate, but for $15 they nmay be able to avoid
an awful lot of grief, hassle, and $25 or whatever the
ot her penalties would be - why would you want to deny
them at | east the possibility of reducing the
liability and the obligations to an individual that
they al so owe sone noney to?

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 23, 2004



MR. CLEARY replied:

That is a good question. And that, again, points to
the fact of what we would consider predatory |ending
or why we have usury laws in the first place, because
if sonebody is vulnerable, do they deserve to be
| oaned to for such an outrageous rate? Don't we need
to figure out another way to protect them rather than
subjecting them to the only option that they have

left, ... to go to a payday |ender and cone out with a
| oan that charges them 400 percent interest? These
are people living, literally, paycheck to paycheck,

and we don't believe they should be subject to that
type of predatory | ending.

Number 1960

GORI UNE  DUDUKG AN, Staff  Attorney, Al aska Legal Servi ces
Corporation (ALSC), Anchorage, testified against HB 389. She
explained that ALSC is a statewi de |egal-aid organization. She
commended the attorney general's office for taking this bill in
the right direction. Ms. Dudukgian said she felt she could
speak for those who represent consuner interests, saying they
cannot support this bill because it fails to address the nunber-
one problemwith the original bill, the unconscionable interest
rates it allows. Noting that M. Cleary had pointed out that a
$500 | oan has an APR of 417 percent, she said:

That's just the maximum |l oan at the mninumterm  But
a $250 loan would carry 443 percent interest, and a
$100 loan would bear an APR of 521 percent interest.
Just to put those rates into perspective, it's been
docunented that |oan sharks that wrked for the
Ganbino crine famly only charged between 150 percent
and 250 percent for simlar |oans, where they took
consuner checks, where they nade payday |oans that
basically, worked the exact sanme way that payday | oans
would be working wunder this bill and they were
charging half as nuch interest.

V5. DUDUKA AN conpared these interest rates with the small |oans
Act. This bill would allow at least 10 tinmes the interest that
regular small 1oan |enders charge. She said she could see no
reason for these high rates. Noting that payday |enders nmay say
they need to charge these rates to protect thenselves because
these loans are far riskier than regular |oans, she questioned

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 23, 2004



this logic, since regular lenders who lend $600 and don't even
have a check as security can only charge 36 percent interest.
In contrast, payday |enders take a check and could previously
get treble damages, and in this bill would still get up to $700
nore than the face of the | oan. Ms. Dudukgi an al so noted that
in Alaska not many people are judgnent-proof, and |enders have
the security of going to court when permanent fund checks are
distributed and making a claim for $700 in addition to the face
val ue of the |oan, which would be a very large profit.

Number 2073

M5. DUDUKGE AN proposed to solve these concerns by requiring the
current payday |enders to disclose the APR, an action nandated
by the federal truth-in-lending Act. She suggested that the
| egi slature put a hard cap on the APR that payday |enders can
charge, a hard cap far lower than the 417 percent currently
allowed, no nore than double digits, which would still be a
handsome profit for the payday | enders. Suggesting the bil
doesn't allow for a private right of action, she explained that
the Division of Banking and Securities mght not have the
capability of enforcement, and the attorney general's office
fundi ng has been cut. Noting that there's been an inability to
prosecute a lot of the consuner-related violations, she
submtted that the sane would happen wunder the current
| egi sl ati on.

M5. DUDUKGE AN assured nenbers that hard statistics from other
states indicate payday lenders target mlitary famlies and
seniors; she suggested simlar statistics would apply in Al aska
if the studies were done. She had received information from
M. Ceary's organization that confirnmed these targets, she
not ed.

Nunber 2160

ANGELA LI STON, Director, Ofice of Justice and Peace,
Archdi ocese of Anchorage, spoke on behalf of the Alaska Catholic
Conference, the public-policy arm of Alaska's Catholic bishops.
She said the conference supports the concept of HB 389 and is
pl eased with sonme of the changes incorporated into the proposed
CS, particularly lowering the maxi mum |oan anmount to $500 and
curtailing the use of the bad-check civil penalty in case of

defaul t. She said she felt this bill wuld begin the
conversation on regulating industry, and she applauded the
commttee for taking these steps. However, she said, the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- February 23, 2004



Catholic Church had | ong opposed exorbitant profits on loans to
t he wor ki ng poor.

M5. LISTON related sone concerns. She said 10 days ago the
Georgia [House of Represent ati ves] overwhel m ngly passed
| egislation to crack down on these types of |oans and set the

new | oan interest cap at 60 percent. She said this legislation
was of particular interest to Al aska because, according to the
newspaper reports, it canme as the mlitary officials across
Georgia tried with |awrmkers to stop these |lenders from taking
advant age of cash-strapped sol diers. Fort Stewart has called
these lenders "enemes at its gates.” Georgia now bans |enders

from garnishing soldiers' wages or contacting a base commuander
to collect on a loan. She said the proximty of payday |enders
to the gates of Elnendorf Air Force Base certainly should cause
sonme concern, and nore questions needed to be asked.

M5. LISTON said the crux of the issue is protection of the
consuner. One business in Anchorage said it processes 26,000
| oans per year; if that represents 26,000 individuals taking out
two-week |oans, she said, she feels this industry provides a
val uabl e system of service. However, if the trend in Alaska is
simlar to other states, then that nunber is probably quite

different. She cited a national study as the source of
information that many borrowers are applying for back-to-back
| oans. In California, borrowers average 11 |oans per year; in

I[llinois, 13; in Indiana, 12; and in Wsconsin, 13.

MS. LI STON nentioned that 26,000 | oans that Anchorage busi nesses
process every year. She said it's inportant to know the nunber
of individuals who are taking out those | oans. She infornmed the
commttee that if Alaskan statistics are simlar to other
states, then these borrowers average 12 | oans per year, and thus
26,000 | oans mght only represent 2,000 borrowers. Wien this is
added to the fact that these businesses al so sue 500 borrowers a
year for defaulting, then one couldn't call this short-term
| ending or helpful credit; rather, it is increasing, chronic,
and overwhel mi ng debt for people.

MS. LISTON urged consideration of the effect of this type of
| ending on both soldiers and those for whom the cycle of debt
m ght beconme crushing. She recommended a nuch-reduced fee or
interest rate.

TAPE 04-16, SIDE B
Nunber 2342

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- February 23, 2004



MARI E  DARLI N, Coordinator, AARP Capital Cty Task Force,
testified in opposition to HB 389 as it was introduced. She
proposed several changes: the interest rate should be no nore
than 36 percent APR, the avail able |oan anount shouldn't be nore
than $300, and borrowers should be allowed to make partial
repaynents. She read her testinony, which stated [original
punctuation provided but sone formatting changed]:

AARP, in partnership with the Consuner Federation of
America, Consuner's Union, the National Consuner Law

Center, has devel oped what we feel is a nodel bill to
deal with the issue of payday |enders. You were all
given a copy of that nodel bill sone tinme ago.

Anmong our recommendations: Each deferred deposit |oan
must have a minimumtermof no | ess than two weeks for
each $50 owed on the |oan. A consunmer shall be
permtted to make partial paynents (in anounts equal
to no less than $5 increnents) on the loan at any
time, wthout charge. The rmaxi mrum anmount of the
deferred deposit |oan shall not exceed $300.

W are sure that the Commttee is concerned wth
consuner protection. If the term of the loan is not
|l ess than two weeks per $50, consumers will have a
better chance of paying off the loan rather than
defaulting and possibly facing court action or having
to renew the | oan at exorbitant rates.

W understand that a new version of the bill does
retains the nmaxinum anount at $500 rather than
increasing the available loan anmbunt to $1,000; we
bel i eve Al aska should reduce the avail able anpunt from
$500 to $300.

Fees are noney out of soneone's pocket. So is
i nterest. If you and | do not pay off our credit
cards each nonth, we will have to pay interest. [f 1

take out a payday |oan and pay an exorbitant fee, much
hi gher than interest on a credit card, it is still
noney...a significant anmount of noney...out of ny
pocket .

If credit card conpanies can nade handsonme profits
wWith interest rates in the 18 to 23 percent range, why
cannot a payday loan outfit make a profit wth an
interest rate, or a fee, that does not go beyond 36%

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- February 23, 2004



Qur nodel law also allows for an admnistrative fee of
no nore than $5 per |loan, no matter how nuch the | oan
is for.

There are sone states that have determ ned that payday
| enders should not be allowed to exist in their
st at es. AARP does not argue that they should be
banned; we only argue that the interest rate should be
no nore than 36% APR; the avail able | oan anmount shoul d
not be nore than $300, and borrowers should be all owed
to make partial re-paynents. If a consunmer has nore
than $300 in outstanding payday |oans, from one or
nore than one |ender, they should be prohibited from
taking out any additional Iloans from any payday
| endi ng organi zati on.

W believe this is in everyone's best interest.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that she'd supported sonme of the changes
contained in the proposed CS and comrented, "So, we're
continuing this evolution."

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked Ms. Darlin if she'd had a chance
to | ook at the proposed CS.

MS. DARLIN replied that she'd received a copy today and that her
testimony agreed with nost of the changes proposed in the CS.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the proposed CS went far
enough.

M5. DARLIN replied, "If you can go along wth what we are
recommendi ng here.”

CHAI R ANDERSON stated the desire to cone to a consensus.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked soneone from Cash Alaska to
cooment on M. Sniffen's question about borrowers who are
"hoppi ng" fromone | ender to another.

Number 2066

DEBRA FI NK, Owner, Cash Al aska, testified in support of HB 389
and responded that she did not know how to keep track of

borrowers that "hop." Wthin her own business of four stores
she said there is never any danger of a borrower's going beyond
the $500 limt. She stated, "I don't still think there's any

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- February 23, 2004



way of know ng whet her sonebody is going across town to another
pl ace and taking out a loan that brings their total in excess of
$500. But certainly within our business, in our own stores, we
can control that."

M5. FINK addressed the 36 percent interest rate as not being
enough to allow the industry to stay in business. She said her
business did 26,000 loans last year for 24,000 custoners,
bringing in approximately $120,000 in fees. Her overhead
included nine full-tinme positions covering four |ocations,
maki ng $40, 000 each. This cost of $360,000 is three tines the
36 percent cap that has been reconmended. In addition, she has
two and a half positions in her collections division, a full-
time auditor who does the payroll advances, general mnanagers,
and store manhagers. She said 40 percent of the $15 fee goes
towards payroll. Her business has overhead costs of a |ease
utilities, and the conputer system that connects the stores.
She explained that it is expensive to run a business in Al aska.

Number 1925

M5. FINK turned attention to a handout about a recent study of
payday |enders in Tennessee, Kentucky, Illinois, and Wsconsin

It showed a 10 percent profit after costs. She said she felt
this was in the ballpark of the profit she experiences, and she
couldn't offer her services at a 36 percent cap. In response to

a remark from Chair Anderson, M. Fink pointed out that $15 per
$100 is under the national average, so Alaska charges the |ow
end rate in the business. Stand-alone stores that charge a rate
of "about $17 per $100" are going out of business in the
Lower 48, she said, and many of her stand-alone Anchorage
conpetitors have ceased to exist.

Nunber 1810

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG cl arified the source of a handout that
he'd distributed entitled "NCO Update, 08/01/2003." He said it
hel ps non-comm ssi oned officers keep abreast of mlitary matters
and is copyrighted under the Association of the United States

Arny.

CHAI R ANDERSON said the Division of Banking and Securities, the
Ofice of the Attorney GCeneral, and, to a degree, AARP had
coll aborated wth his office on +the proposed CS. He
acknowl edged that AARP had originally recommended its nationa

nodel and pronoted lowering the cap further than was done in
HB 389. He noted that Ms. Fink had provided correspondence from

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- February 23, 2004



i ndi viduals supportive of the |egislation, and said the
commttee hadn't heard from any custoners who had probl ens.

CHAI R ANDERSON comented that he wanted to maintain consuner
protection but at the sanme tine have a |aw that regul ates payday
| enders. The attorney general's office wanted conformty and
statutory definition as to levels of licensure, he said, and
consuner protection; he surmsed that the attorney general's
of fice supports this bill. He noted that eight major revisions
had been nade to the bill, but acknow edged that these changes
didn't conpletely satisfy AARP.

Number 1693

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said mlitary people and seniors aren't
stupid and know what interest rates are. He renarked:

| think there are just as many qualified people that
know how to conduct their business in the mlitary as
in any other segnent of the population. The sanme goes
with seniors. | don't think mlitary or seniors are
any |ess capable of meking financial decisions than
anybody el se.

Number 1653

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report CSHB 389 [the undated,
unnunbered conceptual CS adopted as a work draft] out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG objected, stating concern that the
commttee didn't have an official version of the bill. He said
he'd like to see the original version wth M. Sniffen's
addi tions and Representative Rokeberg's anendnents.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted it was a valid concern. Recalling
that his notion to adopt the proposed CS was nade conceptually,
he said he thought the style of the docunent was adequate to
"give public exposition to what the | anguage intended."

CHAI R ANDERSON offered, "W wll draft this into the CS, the
| egi sl ative protocol and docunent, and then have you |look at it
to make sure, verbatim what this docunent says with the added
anendnent, within the next day. Wth that, do you maintain your
obj ecti on?"

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- February 23, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG r enoved hi s objection.

Number 1545

CHAI R ANDERSON i ndicated that there being no further objection,
CSHB 389(L&C) was reported from the House Labor and Commerce
Standi ng Conm ttee.

HB 418- EXTEND REAL ESTATE COWMM SSI ON

Number 1520

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 418, "An Act extending the term nation date of
the Real Estate Comm ssion; and providing for an effective
date. ™ [HB 418 was sponsored by the House Labor and Commerce
St andi ng Comm ttee.]

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked that the proposed comittee
substitute (CS), Version D, be adopted. He explained, "The
original draft is under the sunset extension for the Real Estate
Comm ssion, and | have taken the liberty of using it to do sone
cleanup work in this area.”

Nunmber 1488
CHAI R ANDERSON noved to adopt the proposed CS, Version 23-

LS1548\D, M schel, 2/20/04, as a work draft. There being no
obj ection, Version D was before the conmttee.

Nunber 1474

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that Version D includes
certain aspects of a fornmer bill that could only be corrected
t hrough statute. Section 2 clarifies that a firm or business
can have a policy in which its inspectors are covered, rather
than have each individual |icensee get his/her own individual
i nsur ance. Section 3 relates to a request to the Division of
Qccupational Licensing about the timng of inactive |licenses and
active licenses, and directs that an inactive license be

reactivated; he described this change as a housekeepi ng neasure.
Section 4 is another housekeepi ng neasure, an added request from
the Division of Qccupational Licensing to clarify issues
surrounding notification of a |icensee; sonetinmes the division
has difficulty, and this allows access to the current mailing
address and other ways to find [licensees].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- February 23, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that Section 5 corrects a
problem in the old hone-inspector bill, which allows current
practitioners to become hone inspectors w thout an exam nation

in former HB 9, page 23, a subsection said "a certificate of
registration issued under this section may not be renewed or
extended", and the assistant attorneys generals said there was a

need to take the exam again because of the word "not". Thus
Section 5 of the current bill says that if the [license is given
to the applicant], the applicant doesn't have to take an
exam nation again [for renewal]. He called this a housekeeping
measure as well. Section 6 provides for a new effective date.
Nunber 1285

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN disclosed that he is a licensed associate
real estate broker with a nmjor conmpany in Anchorage. He al so
stated support for HB 418.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG di sclosed that he is also a I|icensed
real estate broker in Alaska, with a current |icense although he
isn't actively engaged in this.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked both nenbers to vote nonet hel ess.
Number 1245

KATHRYN CLARK, President, Al aska Association of Realtors, spoke
in support of HB 418 as far as the extension of the real estate
comm ssion to the June 30, 2008, date. However, she noted that
she'd been asked to suggest that the changes to the surety fund
woul dn't be supported, which M. Feeken could speak to better.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified for the conmttee that there
was a recommendation in the audit to raise the surety fund claim
| evel from $10,000 to $20,000, and the aggregate to one licensee
from $50, 000 to $100,000. He said he didn't agree with this and
hadn't put it in the bill "for various reasons,” but noted that
there are split opinions within the industry.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al so referred to a recommendation in the
audit that nobile homes or trailers should be subject to clains

under the surety fund. He said this recomendati on wasn't
included in the bill either, because the industry is 100 percent
opposed to it. Noting that trailers and nobile honmes are

personal property, not real property, he said when the nobile
hone dealers or sellers want to start paying into the surety
fund, then they can have a claimto it, but not until that tine.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- February 23, 2004



Number 1133

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that typically realtors can list and
sell nobile homes. He asked whether the buyers would have need
of the surety fund.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the realtor would be selling
personal, not real, property and that the "nobile honme people”
don't contribute to the fund. "I'f they want to becone real
estate licensees, then that's fine," he added, saying it's an
old issue that has been debated in this commttee previously.
He added that at one time there was licensure of nobile hone
deal ers, which was repeal ed.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked, though, if he sold a nobile hone and
made sone error and the buyer wanted redress, whether that
person could go to the surety fund.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that hearing officers had nade
that finding based on that claim before, but he feels so
strongly about it that he has contenplated adding a statutory
prohi bi tion.

Number 1037

DAVE FEEKEN, Legislative Chair, Al aska Association of Realtors,
Kenai, testified in favor of Version D However, he said his
association had concerns about raising the surety fund claim
anounts and the nobile hone issue, and was happy these

recommendations weren't included in the bill. Wth regard to
nobil e honmes, he said if sonmeone who has a real estate license
is subject to surety fund clains. M. Feeken explained that

clains involving earnest nobney agreenents require nandatory
medi ation; there are currently three to four clains a year with
two to three nediation hearings a nonth. The Al aska Associ ation
of Realtors hears three to four arbitrations annually, providing
this service to practically all licensees in the state, whether
or not they are nenbers of the organization.

MR. FEEKEN informed the commttee that when the surety fund was
put in place, it covered fraud, deceit, m srepresentation, and
conversion of funds. Previously, errors and omssions (E&O
i nsurance didn't cover fraud, deceit, and m srepresentation, but
now it does. Thus he said he felt nmany avenues were avail able
for the public to correct a wong. He added that the Al aska
Associ ation of Realtors had invested a substantial anount of

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- February 23, 2004



noney and tinme over the last 15 years to deal with disputes and
provi de consumer protection.

MR. FEEKEN also explained that $10,000 is the standard
settlement in a claim against |icensed professionals. He said
E&O clains average $6,000 to $7,000; nediation cases, which
currently happen at the rate of two or three a nonth, have
average settlenment clainms of $5,000 to $6,000; and small clains
court renedies up to $7,500, and there's currently a bill that
would raise this to $10, 000. He enphasi zed that many renedies
are available to the public without resorting to a surety fund
claim or a lawsuit, and he said those renedies are far nore
expedient than either the surety fund claimor a |awsuit, which
may take nultiple years. For exanple, it costs $75 to file for
medi ati on

MR. FEEKEN went on to say that has been input to the industry
that the surety fund clains are wused to "finance further
| osses.” He said that's a valid concern.

[Chair Anderson noted that Pat Davidson was present from the
Division of Legislative Audit to answer questions.]

Number 0754

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report CSHB 418, Version 23-
LS1548\D, M schel, 2/20/04, out of comrmittee wth individua
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, CSHB 418(L&C) was reported from the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Committee.

HB 509- ALASKA GAM NG COW SSI ON

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 509, "An Act relating to establishing the
Al aska Gam ng Comm ssion. "

Number 0691

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS1768\1, Luckhaupt, 02/23/04, as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version | was before the
committee.

Nunmber 0655

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- February 23, 2004



SUE STANCLI FF, House Mjority Ofice, Alaska State Legislature,
presented HB 509 on behal f of Representative Kott, sponsor. She
i ntroduced Version | by saying the Al aska Gami ng Comm ssion wl |
regulate all forms of gaming activity in Al aska; this includes
current forns and additional fornms that nmay be authorized by the
| egi sl ature under AS 05.15." Reading from the sponsor
statenent, she said gamng activity currently allowed in
AS 05.15.100 includes bingo, raffles, lotteries, pull-tab ganes,
"classics," fish derbies, and contests of skill. I f additiona
forms of gam ng becone legal in Alaska in the future, it wll be
critical that appropriate regulatory oversight be in place.

M5. STANCLI FF said the goal of HB 509 is to put the regulatory
framework in place by establishing the Al aska Gam ng Comm ssion
within the Departnent of Revenue. This bill establishes
paraneters for a seven-nenber comr ssion appointed by the
governor and confirnmed by the legislature; it clearly specifies
comm ssion nmakeup, qualifications for conmssioners, neeting

times, powers, and duties. It clarifies that the conm ssion may
not authorize a charitable gamng activity unless that activity
is authorized under AS O05.15. It only gives the comm ssion

tools necessary to admnister gamng once the legislature and
governor adopt this activity into | aw.

Number 0558

M5. STANCLIFF said Version | was a result of working wth
di fferent menbers of the gaming industry, taking their
recommendations and incorporating them There is also a new
fiscal note attached that will have mninmal inpact. Version |
limts the ability of gamng to expand in Al aska, since it could
only do so with the authorization of the |egislature. The

sponsor didn't feel it was appropriate to give the conmmi ssion
broad authority to do interstate ganbling or take up extended
gam ng activities, she explained. Ms. Stancliff pointed out
that while it had been recommended to appoint one nenber of the
comm ssion from the gamng industry, the decision had been to
choose three. It would be a seven-nenber conm ssion, which she
characterized as large, and this was the reason for choosing
three conm ssioners that would have direct industry ties.

M5. STANCLIFF referred to changes on page 6 that would require
the legislature to authorize various gamng activities. She
said she'd verified the ages of people in the prohibited acts on
page 6 and expl ai ned:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- February 23, 2004



It says a person "may not". And if you | ook on nunber

3, line 28, it says "knowingly sell or offer to sell a
gam ng product to a person under the age of 21." Now,
for bingo it is age 19; pull-tabs is age 21. | felt

that this was appropriate to put in here for the
construction of this conm ssion.

M5. STANCLIFF related that the proposed commi ssion was nodel ed
after several states, including |Idaho and Col orado. She said 47
states have conmmssions simlar to the one proposed in this
bill, with only Uah, Hawaii, and Al aska absent fromthis count.

CHAIR ANDERSON said a representative from the Departnent of
Revenue woul d stand by for technical questions.

Number 0214

DARW N BIVWER, Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association
(CHARR) for Alaska and for Anchorage, said his organization is
totally in favor of HB 509. He felt the bill was overdue, since
several types of ganbling are legal in Alaska and sone that are
illegal need to be "cleaned up." He suggested this was not a
bill for or against ganbling, but a bill to regulate the present
activities of ganbling in Al aska.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked how many nenbers were in Al aska CHARR

MR. BIVER said he thought there were approxinmately 200 statew de
nmenbers in CHARR in Anchorage there were about 200.

Nunmber 0069

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that there is already ganbling on
| i censed prem ses in Al aska.

CHAI R ANDERSON offered his understanding that M. Biwer was in
favor of the seven-nenber conm ssion.

TAPE 04-17, SIDE A
Nunmber 0033

CHAIR ANDERSON suggested +the commssion was proportioned
t hroughout the state for the selection of the conm ssioners.

MR. BIVER said he understood that the proposed CS indicates one

comm ssioner from the pull-tab industry, one from the bingo
i ndustry, and one from the general gan ng. He reiterated that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- February 23, 2004



this is to "clean up our act.” He said illegal ganbling is
prolific around the state, especially in Anchorage. He want ed
the commission to oversee electronic ganng, pari - nut uel
ganbling, and any other type of ganbling in the state.

CHAIR ANDERSON recalled that in the 1990s there was a

charitabl e-gam ng division under Departnent of Revenue. Now
there is a need for coverage and analysis of ganbling issues
whet her or not there's expansion. The bill would also provides

for enforcenent and overvi ew where there hasn't been any before.
He suggested this is a preparation in case there is expansion as
wel | .

MR. BIVER recalled a visit |ast year from Dennis Jackson, forner
head of the ldaho State Lottery, to the House Special Commttee
on Ways and Means [and the House Special Committee on Econom c
Devel opnent, International Trade and Tourism as well]. He
recalled that M. Jackson expl ained two basic prem ses: gam ng
must be run like a business, and it requires airtight security.
M. Biwer said he felt the comm ssion would do that.

Number 0252

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered his initial reaction, if there is a
seven-nmenber conmm ssion, with three representing the industry,
and the conmssion is designed to clean up the industry, that
this is overwei ghted.

MR. BI VEER responded that three out of seven is not a nmajority.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was well aware of that and added,
"You only need one nore vote to do whatever you like as far as
cleaning up the industry. It just seens overweighted.”

CHAIR ANDERSON suggested the weighting should perhaps be
addressed by the sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for clarification [page 2, |line 14] on
who might be the third nmenber from the gam ng industry. He
surmsed it would be from sonething that would cone in the
future

MR, BIVER said it could be an ice classic, for exanple, or a
sal non der by.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- February 23, 2004



CHAIR ANDERSON said it isn't designated, but presunmably will be
soneone from the industry. He suggested this is an inportant
aspect for this conmttee to | ook at.

MR. BIVER referred to page 2, lines [14-17], and said it would
be sonmeone holding a permt for a charitable gamng activity
ot her than bingo or pull-tabs.

Nunber 0423

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Biwer, "Do you think this
bill would be necessary if we weren't ready to expand gamng in
this state?"

MR. BIVER responded, "Absolutely.” He said it is needed because
of current illegal ganbling activities. He referred to after-
hours joints, gray nachines, the need to tighten reporting on
pull -tab revenue, and loss to the state of revenue from taxation
as current issues that need to be dealt wth, In response to
remarks from Chair Anderson, who noted he used to work wth
CHARR, M. Biwer said the reporting system isn't airtight and
remarked, "If you're against this bill, I would think you're in
favor of not having control or regulation.”

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Biwer whether he has pull-tabs in his
bar .

MR. Bl VER sai d no.
Number 0566

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what a gray machine is.

MR. BIVWER explained that those are illegal machines inported
into the state that are in bars; there is an agreenent with the
manager or owner of a bar that they'|l|l pay off.

CHAI R ANDERSON poi nted out that none of that nobney goes to the
state, in addition to its being illegal.

Number 0605

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how this comm ssion would address the
probl em of illegal ganbling.

MR, BIVER replied that if the comm ssion had regulatory control,
it would nonitor and regulate illegal ganbling. He noted that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- February 23, 2004



there may be a federal angle as well, and nentioned the Federa
Bureau of Investigation (FBI) and interstate comerce related to
shi ppi ng the machi nes. He said the Minicipality of Anchorage
won't prosecute this; when an after-hours joint does get busted,
the penalty is lax, basically a "slap on the hands."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether the conmm ssion would use civil
or crimnal laws to cone down on these activities.

CHAI R ANDERSON suggested that the Departnent of Revenue answer
that question later.

Number 0732

ROBERT LCESCHER, Chairman, Legislative Conmttee, Alaska Native
Br ot herhood, Canp 2; President, Juneau Tlingit-Haida Comrunity
Council, said he represents a nunber of other community
organi zati ons. He testified in favor of HB 509 wth
reconmendati ons and comments. He offered several suggestions
i ncluding careful review of the provision in the bill that would
create dual authority over establishnents that serve al cohol and
participate in gam ng. He expressed concern that both the new
comm ssion and the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board ("ABC
Board") would have authority, which could create conflicts in
the state admnistration of this area. He also pointed out that
a business in violation of a gamng law could lose its |iquor
| i cense, suggesting this dual-authority situation should be
exam ned.

MR. LCESCHER noted that he'd submitted a letter to the commttee
and woul d give the highlights in his testinony. He said the way
the comm ssion is configured, four nenbers could conme from one
political party; this mght pose difficulty in terns of how this

oper at es. Furthernmore, he proposed having a five-person
majority rather than the four-person majority presently in the
bill; this would result in clear decision-naking.

MR. LOESCHER, pointing out that the executive director of the
proposed comm ssion would have the power to sign contracts and
agreenents, offered the belief that no contracts or agreenents
should be authorized unless it's authorized by the conmm ssion
and the executive director has been directed to [by the
comm ssion] to execute agreenents. Some of the agreenents that
could be contenplated in the future could be I|arge decisions
that would have a lot of effect on organizations, comunities,
and busi nesses. Stating support for the formation of the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- February 23, 2004



comm ssion, he requested consideration of the coments he'd
provi ded.

Number 0940

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG surmsed that the letter M. Loescher
had presented was based on another version of HB 509. He opined
that sone issues had been taken care of in Version 1. He
requested input fromthe sponsor.

Number 0988

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOIT, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 509, responded that he didn't believe a five-nmenber quorum
had been addressed. Wth regard to the last issue talked about
by M. Loescher, he said Sec. 05.18[.030] on page 3, line 20

says the conmi ssion shall enter into contracts and agreenents
necessary to carry out the provisions of the chapter, and on the
next page it says the conm ssion shall enploy the director who
is qualified and so forth.

Number 1050

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Loescher if he there had been
di scussion of having three versus two nenbers of the gam ng
i ndustry.

MR. LOESCHER replied, "W would fully support three.”

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "Wuld you support five? Wuld you
support four? ... How do you arrive at the nunber that is
i nportant to you?"

MR. LCESCHER repli ed:

Consi dering the size of the comm ssion, the conm ssion
shouldn't be ... too big, so that it couldn't nmake
decisions, but it should be large enough that it at
| east have representation fromthe industry as we know
it today, because there's a l|lot of experience there
and they have famliarity wth the regulatory

devel opment already. ... And the growh of the
i ndustry would probably evolve from these people that
are involved. And so ny thinking basically was to

make sure that there was at |east representation from
the existing industry.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- February 23, 2004



MR, LCESCHER, in further response, indicated he believes it
woul d be pragnmatic to have at least a third of whatever size the
[ comm ssion] is.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG suggested perhaps party affiliation
should be further dimnished so that no two nenbers could be of
any political party.

MR. LOESCHER said he'd served on other comm ssions, having been
appointed by President Cinton to the study comm ssion on a
national gasoline cap that had three nenbers from the House of
Representatives, three from the Senate, and three from the
Pr esi dent. He said this was basically done on a party basis.
He comented that in state government comm ssions are often
appointed wth nmenbers from the |egislature, menbers  of
i ndustry, or from citizens groups. Saying this is kind of
unusual, he said his organization hadn't wanted to challenge
where the people cane from as long as there was representation
fromthe industry.

Nunber 1187

CHAI R ANDERSON said he thought it was the intent to ensure there
woul dn't be partisanship by having a limt. He then noted that
t he sponsor was shaki ng his head.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked about nonpartisan and undeclared
persons, and asked whet her they should be included al so.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested the term "affiliation” rather
than "party".

CHAI R ANDERSON said Representative Lynn had brought up a good
point, and noted that Representative Rokeberg had brought up a
possi bl e rewordi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said, "No nore than four from a particul ar
party."” He then asked about "nonpartisan” and said that's fine.

[Chair Anderson called upon David Lanbert, but then announced
t hat Fairbanks was di sconnect ed. ]

Nunber 1272

ED MOEGLEI N, Al aska Nonprofit Charitable Organi zat i ons,
Sol dot na, expressed concern about issues that may inpact his

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- February 23, 2004



organi zation's fundraising capabilities on behalf of charities
t hey support. He expl ai ned:

Each organization that belongs to our organization
pays $50 annually to cover costs of nailing, phones,
and copying. W' ve been having regular neetings tw ce
a nonth, on the first and third Mondays. Qur nenbers
are from a nunber of organizations that have statew de
affiliations that represent the posts and | odges of
the [Anmerican veterans], VFW [Veterans of Foreign
Wars], Anmerican Legion, D sabled Anerican Veterans,
Moose, El ks, Eagl es, as well as their state
departnments that oversee and pronote the prograns and
charities of these |odges that post across the entire
state. Also supporting us is the local chanber of
comerce that al so recognized our efforts and
contributions to our conmunities.

MR. MOEGLEIN said he was present to listen to others' testinony,
get additional information, and support formation of the gam ng
comm ssion. As for accountability with regard to pull-tabs, he
said there is strict accountability as to the total anount of
noney taken in both by his organization and the vendors that
sell pull-tabs for his organization; there are annual reports,
and this also is reflected in the cost of the permt. He
explained that his organization has no problem wth the
comm ssion, but just wants the nonprofits to be fairly
represented so they can continue to serve comunities. He
expressed the need for representation on this commssion in
order to address his organization's concerns.

Nunber 1463

GREG PETERSON, Allied Charities, Ketchikan, testified against
HB 509 and questioned the reason for and the intent of the
proposed gam ng conmm ssion. He expressed being stunned that
there was new attention being paid to the gam ng industry, since
previ ous regul ation had di m nished through tine due to decreased

f undi ng. Countering M. Biwer's coments, he said there are
laws on the books that deal wth after-hours joints and
incorrect accounting in the pull-tab business, as well as

i nvestigators.

MR. PETERSON said he feels the reason for this conmssion is
that the Departnment of Revenue recommended that before Al aska
enters into any video gam ng, a conm ssion be forned. He feels
it isn't because of new concern or caring about the charitable

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 33- February 23, 2004



gam ng industry. He said, "W've asked and |obbied for all
kinds of different things over the years to help ... clean up
the industry; we've never been listened to once.” He again
guestioned the reason and intent for the proposed conm ssion.

CHAI R ANDERSON said he'd talk to M. Peterson |ater about CACGE
(ph), an organization M. Peterson is a nenber of; he expressed
concern about whether that organization is registered with the
Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion for |obbying purposes.

Number 1614

CHAI R ANDERSQN, upon determ ning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM st at ed:

Wth all due respect to the maker of this bill, | am
going to disagree with many of the things that 1've
heard this afternoon. ... | acknowl edge that we
currently have pull-tabs and we have other ganes that
are being played. In acknow edging that and in
knowing that they're there, to ne that does not make
it right.

And as the gentleman who previously just spoke [said],
we do have |laws and regulations that are in place that
| feel should be held accountable, and ... that we
need to enforce the laws that are there as far as
regul ati ng. An exanple that continues to be brought
up today are the after-hour joints. | personally
don't ever want to see our state becone dependent on
noney that cones in, in this form

And | also believe that setting regulations for noney

that conmes in, in the wong way isn't right. | don't
think you can take sonething that | believe is wong
and make it right by creating regulations for it.
Again, with ... respect for the naker of ... the bill,
| have no intention of being any part of ... noving
this ... conmssion forward. | feel that this is part
of an overall plan of allowi ng electronic gam ng and
other ganbling to becone |egal. And | just cannot

support that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comented with regard to the Al aska
Nati ve Brotherhood letter that M. Loescher had presented:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 34- February 23, 2004



Hs first poi nt about . the duplication of
responsibility bet ween this new Al aska Gam ng
Comm ssion and the, presumably, ABC Board, which is

under the Departnent of ... Revenue, ... in Section 1
of the bill, ... I'd like to state for the record that
it'"s ny interpretation of the bill that the |icense or
permt referred to in Section 1 are the bill's
licenses and permts under AS 05.15 and not under
Title 4. ... Representative Kott, is that correct?
So, | just want to nmake sure that's on the record, and
we don't need to anend it in any way. ... That takes
care of that one issue they brought up. It is a valid
point of clarification; I think it's necessary.

CHAI R ANDERSON sai d Representative Kott, for the record, agrees.

Nunber 1753

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG  began di scussi on of Concept ua
Amendnent 1. He referred to page 2, line 12, and suggested
adding "affiliation or" after "political". Thus it would say
"menbers of the sanme political affiliation or party". He

expl ai ned that a nonpartisan person isn't a nmenber of a party.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked whether the sponsor concurred wth
encapsul ating those registered voters as well. [ There was no
audi bl e response. ]

Number 1820

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt the foregoing as
Conceptual Anendnent 1, leaving to the drafters wording such
that any registered voter in Alaska could qualify for that
position, whether a party nenber or not.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said it seened sinple but could be
conpl ex. For exanple, there couldn't be a full conm ssion of
nonparti san or unaffiliated persons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG specified that he was trying to nake it
nore open to all people.

Nunmber 1883

CHAIR ANDERSON asked whether there was any objection to
Conceptual Anmendnent 1.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 35- February 23, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he wasn't sure it answered the
probl em but he woul dn't object.

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that Conceptual Anmendnment 1 was
adopt ed.

Nunber 1899

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 2,
on page 2, line 11, changing the nunber from "four” to "three"
of the seven nenbers. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

Nunber 1920

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG  began di scussi on of Concept ua
Amendnent 3, page 2, line 12. He said:

The three nenber conm ssion that are permttees, |'d
make that two nenbers and they could just hold the
charitable gam ng permt under [AS] 05.15 and not nake
t hem bi ngo, pull-tab, whatever. They'd just have to
have a permt and they'd be two of the seven nenbers.

The reason I'm going to this method is |I would be
concerned about if the people that are regulating

t hensel ves may have too much weight. The current
statutory structure would be overweighted in this
group.

One of the charges, quite frankly - and | don't think
anybody is trying to hide anything here - is for this
comm ssion to look at the policy and the future policy
of the State of Al aska. So, if we get too many
nmenbers that are ingrained in the current status quo,
we won't get any novenent at all; we won't nake any
changes, and | don't think that's the intention of the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified that two of those nenbers
woul d be permttees. He said sonetines it's hard to get people
who are qualified or who want to serve who are particul ar Kkinds
of licensees or permt hol ders.

CHAIR ANDERSON clarified: " So, rat her t han one bi ngo
comm ssioner and one pull-tab conm ssioner and then a third

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 36- February 23, 2004



unknown, there will be two comm ssioners with permts, and not
desi gnated bingo or pull-tab, just open.™

Nunber 2037

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 3,
page 2, line 12, to delete "three" and insert "two" and further
have it read, "Two nenbers of the comm ssion nust be involved in
charitable gamng in this state, and hold a permt under
AS 05.15." The rest of the sentence woul d be del et ed.

CHAI R ANDERSON, hearing no objection, announced that Conceptua
Amendnent 3 was adopt ed.

CHAIR ANDERSON remarked that he understands and respects
Represent ati ve Dahl strom s phil osophy, but said:

| think that ... this is inportant. The conmi ssion is
necessary, and not just from the testinony we have
heard, but from ny experience in the industry, and
also looking at legislation last year, which really
didn't nove anywhere. But through analysis we
determned that, and | think the [House Specia
Commttee on Ways and Means] also determned that a
gaming conmssion is the first step, an essential
foundati on, whether gam ng expands or does not expand.

And | think M. Biwer testified to that, that
CHARR did not cone here saying, "Hey, we support or

are against other issues of ganmng." They cane to
support the Alaska Gam ng Comm ssion concept because
it wll increase enforcenent. ... The last testifier

stated that he didn't think it would help, but | do.
| do think it wll help. And | think that it wll
prevent those gray machines and [illegal] gam ng and
ganbling, and it wll make it nore stricter. And so |
support the bill to that end.

Number 2059

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG st at ed:

In the early 90s | was involved peripherally in
gam ng, and watched ... the funding and the
enforcenment officers and investigators ... through a
variety ... of governors kind of dissipate, and
oversight kind of dimnish. ... If M. Myers is stil

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -37- February 23, 2004



on [teleconference], | would like him to comrent on
the state of charitable-gam ng oversight now, because
basically what we're doing is saying the system we
have doesn't work, and we want to replace it with this
commi ssi on. So how is it broken? ... Is it a matter
of ... [nonenforcenent]? Is it a mtter of no
investigations? Is it a matter of inadequate |aws or
regul ati on?

Nunber 2129

LARRY WMEYERS, Deputy Drector, Tax Division, Department of
Revenue, explained that one of the prograns for which he has
oversight is the charitable gamng unit. He offered background
as foll ows:

Charitable gamng used to be a division. In 1997
for budget reasons, they were reduced from a division
to a unit. The division used to conprise ... 13

people. At the tine that it was transferred over into
the incone and excise audit division at that tine,
there were seven folks that transferred over: one
supervisor, two accounting techs, two auditors,

and two investigators. Since that time, the unit has
not grown in size.

During the six or seven years ... that it's been under
ny responsibility, we've tried to increase the
enforcement. ... W haven't had any new positions. I
think that ... we have shown that we've done a |ot
with the tools that we have had, but gam ng continues
to grow. It is a ... very controversial area. ... It
deals in a lot of cash, and there are sonme problens
out there. W've tried to set out in our annual

report sonme of the mgjor cases that we've worked and
sone of the good that we've brought to the industry,
and it is an industry that needs a | ot of oversight.

MR. MEYERS, in response to Representative GQuttenberg, said there
are two investigators statew de, over 1,200 permttees,
approximately 200 conplaints a year, and two auditors. In
response to Representative Gatto, he said the nbst comon
conplaint has cone from people who have felt there was insider
action, that is, collusion between select players and the person
runni ng the gane.

Number 2239

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 38- February 23, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KOIT agreed there have been sone troubling
aspects in this particular area. He said this commttee has in
its possession a bill from the governor that deals with pull-
tabs, but there are problens with that bill and thus it has been
referred back to this commttee. He remarked, "It's a
continuation of various activities that are sonewhat problematic
in this state regarding gamng.” Turning to the current bill,
he tol d nmenbers:

Ri ght now, this commssion is not needed. Regar dl ess
of what one of the nenbers said, this commssion is
not needed to inplenent or expand gam ng operations in
this state. W can do it wthout this conmm ssion.
Now, what we're saying is there's an extra |layer here
that's first going to have to evaluate everything
around the state to determ ne whether or not whatever
it is, is good for the State of Al aska. Once that
reconmendation is made and forwarded to us, then the
| egi slature, in the sane process we would go through
right now, ... would have to introduce |egislation and
pass it through the committee process. So this
particular comm ssion allows for a second | ayer.

But thirdly, and probably nore inportantly, is that
this protects us against an initiative process. [1f]
an initiative cones forward, | think nost of you have
recognized in the various polls that there's sone
forms of gam ng opportunities in this state that would

probably pass, al bei t a lottery or maybe the
el ectroni c gam ng machi nes. That goes on the ball ot
in the form of an initiative and passes. GQuess what
we got? W got it. W don't have the luxury of going
back and debating the issue. At least we have the
comm ssion that is in place to deal with it and to
regulate. | think that's the nost inportant aspect of

this because | believe it's com ng.
Nunber 2330
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report CSHB 509 [Version 23-
LS1768\ 1, Luckhaupt, 2/23/04], as amended, out of conmittee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying indetermnate
fiscal note(s).

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM obj ect ed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 39- February 23, 2004



Number 2350

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Lynn, Rokeberg,
Gatto, and Anderson voted in favor of reporting the bill from
comittee. Representatives Guttenberg and Dahlstrom voted
against it. Therefore, CSHB 509(L&C) was reported from the

House Labor and Commrerce Standing Commttee by a vote of 4-2.
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:45 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -40- February 23, 2004



